

Proposed Changes to NCCR Regulation 1

ISSUANCE OF REGULATIONS; CONSTRUCTION; DEFINITIONS

New~~{Deleted}~~~~CCB proposed changes~~ after 12.2.25 workshop~~CCB proposed deletion~~ after 12.2.25 workshop~~CCB proposed retention~~ after 12.2.25 workshop~~[1.082 “Derived” defined.]~~

1.110 “Imminent health hazard” defined.

~~[1.115 “Label” defined.]~~~~[1.135 “Packaging” defined.]~~~~[1.082 “Derived” defined. For purposes of NRS 678A.***, “derived” means obtained directly from a plant of the genus Cannabis as used in the definitions of cannabis in NRS 678A or hemp in NRS 557, whether naturally or through an extraction process approved by the Board. This does not prohibit decarboxylation of THCA.]~~

1.110 “Imminent health hazard” defined. “Imminent health hazard” means a substantial hazard to the public health. ~~[situation that requires immediate correction or cessation of operations to prevent injury or serious illness as determined by the Board pursuant to NCCR 4.065.]~~

~~[1.115 “Label” defined. “Label” means written or printed material affixed to or included with cannabis or a cannabis product to provide identification or other information.]~~~~[1.135 “Packaging” defined. “Packaging” means the immediate consumer-facing wrapper or container in which usable cannabis or cannabis product is packaged.~~
~~(Amended: 8/2021)~~

Proposed Changes to NCCR Regulation 4

DISCIPLINARY AND OTHER PROCEEDINGS BEFORE THE BOARD

New~~Deleted~~~~CCB proposed changes~~ after 12.2.25 workshop~~CCB proposed deletion~~ after 12.2.25 workshop~~CCB proposed retention~~ after 12.2.25 workshop

4.010 Applicability.

~~4.012 Time.~~

4.020 Grounds for disciplinary action.

4.030 Imposition of civil penalty; revocation or suspension of license or cannabis establishment agent registration card; corrective action.

4.033 Category I Violations.4.035 Category ~~I~~II Violations.4.040 Category ~~II~~III Violations.4.050 Category ~~III~~IV Violations.4.055 Category ~~IV~~V Violations.4.060 Category ~~V~~VI Violations.4.061 Category VII Violations.

4.065 Imminent health hazard.

4.067 Administrative Hold Order.

4.070 Complaint.

4.090 Appearance through counsel.

4.095 Early case conference and hearing.

4.100 Reinstatement of license or cannabis establishment agent registration card: Application; conditions, limitations or restrictions upon reinstatement; denial.

4.105 Grounds for summary suspension; notice; request for hearing.

4.110 Discovery: mandatory exchanges.

4.130 Subpoenas.

4.135 Disposition of charges: Adjudication by Board.

4.137 Settlement of Disciplinary Actions and/or Contested Cases.

4.140 Declaratory orders and advisory opinions.

4.145 Adoption, amendment or repeal of a regulation.

4.012. Time. Wheresoever in these regulations “days” are referenced without any modifier, the term “days” shall be deemed calendar days and not business days. The number of days shall be calculated as set forth in NRCP 6(a)(1).]

4.033 Category I Violations.

1. The Board or a hearing officer employed by the Board will determine a category I violation of the NCCR and Title 56 of NRS as follows:

(a) Category I violations are of a severity that precludes the continuing operations of a cannabis establishment or the maintenance of a cannabis establishment agent card.

(b) Category I violations include, without limitation:

(1) Conviction of an excluded felony offense, as defined in NRS 678B.050; *or*

(2) Diversion of cannabis or a cannabis product.

2. Before consideration of the factors described in subsection 3 of NCCR 4.030(2), the Board or a hearing officer *employed by the Board* will presume that the appropriate penalty for any Category I violation is revocation of a license or cannabis establishment agent registration card.

4.035 Category II Violations.

1. The Board *or a hearing officer employed by the Board* will determine a category ***II*** violation of the NCCR and Title 56 of NRS as follows:

(a) Category ***II*** violations are of a severity that make a person ineligible to receive, renew, or maintain a license, including, without limitation:

(1) Intentionally failing to comply with a Board order or directive;

(2) Operating, working, or volunteering without all required permits, and/or licenses, including but not limited to business license, special land use permit, tax permit, or other licenses required to operate;

(3) Making an intentionally false statement to the Board or Board Agents;

(4) Intentionally destroying or concealing evidence;

(5) Allowing noisy, disorderly or unlawful activity that results in death or serious physical injury, that involves the unlawful use or attempted use of a deadly weapon against another person or that results in a sexual offense which is a category A felony;

(6) Operating a cannabis establishment while the license for the cannabis establishment is suspended or revoked;

(7) Transporting cannabis outside of the boundaries of this State, except where authorized by an agreement between the Governor of this State and a participating tribal government;

(8) Making verbal or physical threats to a Board Agent or Board member;

(9) Failing to immediately admit regulatory or law enforcement personnel with appropriate identification *into* the premises of a cannabis establishment;

(10) Refusing to allow an inspection or obstructing regulatory personnel or law enforcement officer from performing his or her official duties;

(11) Purchasing, selling, acquiring, cultivating, producing, or otherwise using cannabis not found in the seed-to-sale tracking system *and/or from an unapproved or unlicensed source*;

(12) Transporting or storing cannabis from an unlicensed source, other than patient or consumer samples stored at a cannabis independent testing laboratory;

(13) Any undocumented variance in inventory exceeding 10% of total inventory;

(14) Failure to tag more than 10% of mature plants and/or packages;

- (15) Engaging in grossly negligent, unlawful or criminal conduct relating to cannabis; or
- (16) Engaging in an act or omission that poses an imminent threat to the health or safety of the public.

2. Before consideration of the factors described in NCCR 4.030(2), the Board *or a hearing officer employed by the Board* will presume that the following are appropriate penalties for violations of the NCCR and Title 56 of NRS:

4.040 Category III Violations.

1. The Board *or a hearing officer employed by the Board* will determine a category *III* violation of the NCCR and Title 56 of NRS as follows:

2. Before consideration of the factors described in NCCR 4.030(2), the Board *or a hearing officer employed by the Board* will presume that the following are appropriate penalties for violations of the NCCR and Title 56 of NRS:

4.050 Category IV Violations.

1. The Board *or a hearing officer employed by the Board* will determine a category *IV* violation of the NCCR and Title 56 of NRS as follows:

2. Before consideration of the factors described in NCCR 4.030(2), the Board *or a hearing officer employed by the Board* will presume that the following are appropriate penalties for violations of the NCCR and Title 56 of NRS:

4.055 Category V Violations.

1. The Board *or a hearing officer employed by the Board* will determine a category V violation of the NCCR and Title 56 of NRS as follows:

2. Before consideration of the factors described in NCCR 4.030(2), the Board *or a hearing officer employed by the Board* will presume that the following are appropriate penalties for violations of the NCCR and Title 56 of NRS:

4.060 Category VI Violations.

1. The Board or a hearing officer employed by the Board will determine a category VI violation of the NCCR and Title 56 of NRS as follows:

2. Before consideration of the factors described in NCCR 4.030(2), the Board or a hearing officer employed by the Board will presume that the following are appropriate penalties for violations of the NCCR and Title 56 of NRS:

4.061 Category VII Violations.

1. The Board or a hearing officer employed by the Board will determine a category VII violation of the NCCR and Title 56 of NRS as follows:

(a) Category VII violations are violations which are inconsistent with the orderly regulation of the sale or production of cannabis or cannabis products, ~~[though]~~ and of a less serious nature than category VI violation ~~[, including, without limitation:]~~ as described in NCCR 4.060.

4.065 Imminent health hazard.

1. The Board, through its Board Agents, will determine whether an event is an imminent health hazard that requires immediate correction or cessation of operations to prevent injury or serious illness based on the nature, severity and duration of any anticipated injury, illness or disease and the number of injuries or illnesses to members of the public which may occur. Events that are presumed to be imminent health hazards create a substantial hazard to public health and include, without limitation:

(a) Interruption of electrical service for 2 or more hours;
(b) Lack of potable water or hot water;
(c) Grossly unsanitary occurrences or conditions including, without limitation, pest infestation or sewage or liquid waste not being disposed of in an approved manner;
(d) Lack of adequate refrigeration;
(e) Lack of adequate toilet and hand-washing facilities for employees;
(f) Misuse of poisonous or toxic materials;
(g) A suspected outbreak of foodborne illness;
(h) A fire or flood;
(i) Governor's emergency directives; or
(j) Any other condition or circumstance which endangers public health.

2. If a cannabis establishment becomes aware of any such condition listed above, independently and not through a Board agent, it must report said hazard to the Board or a Board agent as soon as practicable after ensuring the safety of all persons in the vicinity of the hazard and notify the Board or Board Agent prior to resuming operation

(a) A cannabis facility need not discontinue operations in an area of an establishment that is unaffected by the imminent health hazard.
(b) Considering the nature of the potential hazard involved and the complexity of the corrective action needed, the board may agree to continuing operations in the event of an extended interruption of electrical or water service if:
(1) A written emergency operating plan has been approved by the board agent;

(2) Immediate corrective action is taken to eliminate, prevent, or control any potential contamination risk and imminent health hazard associated with the electrical or water service interruption; and

(3) The board agent is informed upon implementation of the written emergency operating plan.

3. If operations are discontinued by a board agent, as specified under section 1, or otherwise according to law, the cannabis establishment shall obtain approval from the appropriate board agent before resuming operations.

4.067 Administrative Hold Order.

1. The Board, through its Board Agents may issue an administrative hold order for cannabis or cannabis products to prohibit any movement, transfer or sale of cannabis or cannabis products without prior written approval of the Board or an authorized agent of the Board. A hold order can be issued if:

(a) The cannabis or cannabis products fail to comply with a requirement of Title 56 of the Nevada Revised Statutes or any regulation adopted pursuant thereto; [or]
and

(b) The cannabis or cannabis products pose significant constitute a substantial hazard to the public health [or safety risk], including but not limited to:

(1) Failure of laboratory testing;

(2) Incomplete or lack of required laboratory testing;

(3) Inadequate traceability within the seed-to-sale tracking system;

(4) Sale of cannabis or cannabis products that have failed testing without approval from the board agent;

(5) Inversion of cannabis or cannabis products from unlicensed sources;

(6) Diversion of cannabis or cannabis products to unlicensed sources;

(7) Use of unapproved additives or contaminants, including but not limited to pesticides, herbicides, fertilizers, or adulterants;

(8) Cannabis or cannabis products that are misbranded, adulterated, or dishonestly presented; or

(9) Any other circumstances deemed to be a [possible] threat to public health and safety by the board agent.

2. A hold order expires after 30 calendar days, unless:

(a) The Board assigns a matter to a hearing officer who provides notice and holds a hearing; and;

(b) The hearing officer finds good reason to extend the hold. Valid reasons may include but are not limited to:

(1) Pending laboratory retesting or reanalysis;

(2) Awaiting investigative results from law enforcement or regulatory partners;

(3) Delays in receiving required documentation from the licensee;

(4) A scheduled emergency hearing requested by the licensee; or

(5) Any other circumstance where public health or safety may remain at risk.

(c) Extensions require hearing officer approval and documentation.

3. The hearing officer may remove the hold if:

(a) The cannabis or cannabis products are no longer a health and safety risk as determined by the board agent;

(b) The cannabis or cannabis products pass retesting at a licensed laboratory, if the hold was placed due to failed or incomplete laboratory analysis;

(c) The investigation is unable to be substantiated;

(d) The cannabis or cannabis products are approved for extraction or remediation;
or

(e) The hearing officer authorizes the release and updates the seed-to-sale system;
4. Only a board agent may remove hold order tags, labels, or other identification from
cannabis or cannabis products subject to a hold order. [(a)] If cannabis or cannabis
product is removed from an administrative hold without hearing officer or board agent
approval, the Board may impose disciplinary action or summarily suspend the license.
5. The Board may require destruction of cannabis or cannabis products placed on
administrative hold if the cannabis or cannabis products are not brought into
compliance.

4.095 Early case conference and hearing.

1. Within 10 business days after the respondent answers the complaint pursuant to NRS 678A.520, as amended by section 15 of Assembly Bill No. 76, chapter 459, Statutes of Nevada 2025, at page 2981, and demands a hearing or if the Board orders a hearing even if the respondent waives his or her right to a hearing, the parties shall hold an early case conference at which the parties and a hearing officer employed by the Board, shall in good faith:

(a) Set the earliest possible hearing date and the estimated duration of the hearing agreeable to the parties and the hearing officer or not later than [45] 120 days after receiving the respondent's answer unless an extension is granted pursuant to subsection 8 of NRS 678A.520, as amended by section 15 of Assembly Bill No. 76, chapter 459, Statutes of Nevada 2025, at page 2981, or an expedited hearing is determined to be appropriate; The parties, with the approval of the Hearing Officer, may agree to extend the 120 day requirement;

2. A formal hearing must be held before a hearing officer employed by the Board at the time and date set pursuant to subsection 1 and presided over by a hearing officer.

3. The hearing will be conducted as set forth in NRS 678A.540. shall issue, as amended by section 17 of assembly Bill No. 76, chapter 459, Statutes of Nevada 2025, at page 2893.

4.105 [Grounds for summary] Procedures for suspension of operations; [notice] application for reinspection for reinstatement[,], and request for hearing.

1. If a Board agent issues an order [Pursuant] pursuant to [subsection 3 of NRS 233B.127]
section 30 of Assembly Bill No. 76, chapter 459, Statutes of Nevada 2025, at page 2988,
suspending the operation of a cannabis establishment [, if the Board finds that the public
health, safety or welfare imperatively requires emergency action, the Board may issue an order of
summary suspension of the license of a cannabis establishment or a cannabis establishment agent
registration card pending proceedings for revocation or other action. An order of summary
suspension issued by the Board must contain findings of the exigent circumstances which warrant
the issuance of the order of summary suspension, and a suspension under such an order is effective
immediately.

2. The Board or its designee will give notice to a licensee or person that is subject to an order of
summary suspension of the facts or conduct that warrant the order and the deficiencies that must
be corrected to lift the order. A] a cannabis establishment [whose license has been suspended
pursuant to subsection 1 shall develop a plan of correction for each deficiency and submit the plan
to the Board for approval within 10 business days after receipt of the order of summary suspension.
The plan of correction must include specific requirements for corrective action, which must include
times within which the deficiencies are to be corrected. A licensee or person that is subject to an
order of summary suspension shall not operate until the Board or its designee has confirmed that
the deficiencies identified in the order have been corrected]. applying for reinspection for
reinstatement shall submit the written application by e-mail to

AuditInspections@ccb.nv.gov. In addition to the requirements under section 30 subsection 2 of Assembly Bill No. 76, chapter 459, Statutes of Nevada 2025, at page 2988, the written application must provide:

- (a) A written emergency operating plan which has been approved by a Board agent; and*
- (b) Proof that immediate corrective action has been taken to eliminate, mitigate, or control any substantial hazard to public health.*

~~[3. If the plan submitted pursuant to subsection 2 is not acceptable to the Board or its designee, the Board may direct the cannabis establishment to resubmit a plan of correction or the Board may develop a directed plan of correction with which the cannabis establishment must comply.]~~

2. The Board's ~~[acceptance of a plan of correction]~~ *reinspection and reinstatement of a license to resume operations* does not preclude the Board from assessing fines or pursuing disciplinary action against the licensee for any violations connected with the suspension.

~~[4.] 3. A licensee ~~[or person]~~ that is subject to an order ~~[of summary suspension may request a hearing regarding the order within 10 business days after the order is issued. A hearing on the summary suspension must be held within 30 days after that request for hearing.]~~ *pursuant to subsection 1 who petitions for a hearing pursuant to section 30 subsection 1 of Assembly Bill No. 76, chapter 459, Statutes of Nevada 2025, at page 2988, must file the written petition by e-mail to CCBhearings@ccb.nv.gov. This written petition must include:*~~

- (a) A statement of the reasons why its operation does not create a substantial hazard to public health, or why the suspension should be otherwise lifted, rescinded, or modified; and*
- (b) Supporting documentary or photographic evidence substantiating those reasons.*

4. If the petition submitted pursuant to subsection 3 is filed more than 7 days after the date on which the order described in subsection 1 was issued, the filing of the petition constitutes both an acknowledgment by the petitioner and a written agreement between the petitioner and the Board that the hearing may be held after the 14-day period referenced in section 30, subsection 1 of Assembly Bill No. 76, chapter 459, Statutes of Nevada 2025, at page 2988, but in no case later than 14 days after the date on which the petition was filed, unless the Board and the petitioner agree in writing to a longer period.

4.110 Discovery: mandatory exchanges.

6. It shall be a continuing obligation of the parties to produce documents, witness lists, and other matters governed by this section as such become identified by and available to the parties. A party may amend its responses to the requirements of this section by informing the adverse party that documents previously produced or witnesses previously listed, will not be introduced in that party's case in chief. ~~[However, there shall be no supplementation of witnesses or documents after the discovery deadline set at the early case conference (or any extension granted regarding same), unless the proffering party can demonstrate good cause for the failure to timely disclose such supplementation. If such good cause is shown, the opposing party shall be granted sufficient time to disclose witnesses and documents that rebut the new evidence proffered.]~~

7. A party may not supplement any information provided pursuant to this section after the applicable date is set pursuant to NCCR 4.095 unless the party demonstrates good cause for the failure of the party to timely disclose such information. If good cause is shown, the opposing party must be granted a reasonable period of time to disclose witnesses and documents that rebut the new evidence supplemented pursuant to this subsection.

4.130 Subpoenas.

1. The ~~executive assistant~~ hearing officer shall issue subpoenas, including subpoenas duces tecum, upon the request of a party, in accordance with this section.
2. Subpoenas may be issued to compel any person to appear at the hearing on the merits of the case, to give oral testimony alone, or to produce documents or other tangible things.
3. Subpoenas shall be submitted to the ~~executive assistant~~ hearing officer for issuance on a form approved by the Chair. Concurrently with the submission of the subpoena to the ~~executive assistant~~ hearing officer, the requesting party shall serve a copy on all other parties to the proceeding, and shall file proof of such service with the ~~Board~~ hearing officer.
4. Subpoenas will not be issued in blank. A subpoena submitted for issuance must contain the title and number of the case, the name of the person to whom it will be directed, the date, time, and place of the hearing or deposition, and the name and signature of the requesting party or the requesting party's attorney. A subpoena duces tecum must in addition contain a complete description of specific documents or other tangible things that the witness will be required to produce at the hearing.
5. Unless the witness agrees otherwise, a subpoena issued ~~for the purpose provided by subsection 2(b)~~ pursuant to this section must be served by the requesting party at least 10 calendar days prior to the hearing ~~or deposition~~. A subpoena will be issued during the hearing or upon less than 10 days' notice only upon order of the ~~Board~~ hearing officer for reasonable cause shown by the requesting party.

4.135 Disposition of charges: Adjudication by Board.

1. ~~Prior to the adjudication, at least three members of the Board shall review a full transcript of the hearing or the phonographic recording of the hearing, as well as all admitted exhibits, to ensure they have heard all the evidence presented and shall review the findings of fact and conclusions of law submitted after the hearing.~~
2. ~~At the adjudication, the Board shall consider any findings of fact and conclusions of law submitted after the hearing and shall allow:~~
 - (a) ~~Board [a]Agent or counsel for the Board to present a disciplinary recommendation and argument;~~
 - (b) ~~The respondent or counsel of the respondent to present an argument, if they wish to, in opposition to or support of the disciplinary recommendation; and~~
 - (c) ~~The Board may limit the time within which the parties and the complainant may make their arguments and statements.~~
3. ~~At the conclusion of the presentations of the parties, the Board shall deliberate and may by a majority vote impose discipline based upon the evidence, findings of fact and conclusions of law and the presentations of the parties.~~
4. ~~If the Board finds that a violation has occurred, it shall by order any and all discipline authorized by [this Chapter] these regulations and Title 56 of the NRS.~~
5. ~~Within 30 days after the conclusion of the adjudication by the Board, the Board shall issue a final order, that imposes discipline and incorporates the findings of fact and conclusions of law obtained from the hearing. An order that imposes discipline and the findings of fact and conclusions of law supporting that order are public records.]~~

4.137 Settlement of Disciplinary Actions and/or Contested Cases.

3. If the parties enter into a settlement agreement after a disciplinary action or contested case has commenced, or have agreed to the primary terms of a settlement, ~~[the Board, a panel of the Board, or the Board's appointed]~~ a hearing officer employed by the Board may enter a stay of the proceedings pending the Board's consideration of approval of a final settlement agreement executed by the parties.

4.140 Declaratory orders and advisory opinions.

9. The petitioner, or any other party filing a brief under subsection 7 c, may request a waiver of the filing fee pursuant to a showing of financial hardship.

4.145 Adoption, amendment or repeal of a regulation.

4. If a petitioner files a petition that does not contain all the information set forth in subsection 3, the Board may summarily dismiss the petition, with or without prejudice.

5. A petitioner may not file a petition for adoption, amendment or repeal of a regulation that involves regulations that are issues in a contested case which is before the Board in which the petitioner is a party or has a financial or ownership interest in a party.

6. [The] Except as otherwise provided in this section, the Board will consider, within 30 days after the submission of a petition ~~[for adoption, amendment or repeal of a regulation at the next scheduled Board meeting, provided that the petition is filed with the Executive Director 15 calendar days prior to that scheduled Board meeting. If the petition is not filed with the Executive Director 15 calendar days prior to next scheduled]~~ pursuant to this section, deny the petition in writing stating the reasons for the denial or initiate regulation-making proceedings. The Board [meeting, the petition will be considered at the following scheduled Board meeting.] may extend the 30-day deadline with the consent of the petitioner. The Board may delegate to the Chair of the Board the duty to decide whether to deny a petition.

Proposed Changes to NCCR Regulation 5

LICENSING, BACKGROUND CHECKS and REGISTRATION CARDS

New

Deleted

CCB proposed changes after 12.2.25 workshop

CCCB proposed deletion after 12.2.25 workshop

CCB proposed retention after 12.2.25 workshop

~~5.025 Submission of application by person who holds medical cannabis establishment registration certificate for cannabis establishment of same type; issuance of license; refund of fee if application not approved. The Board may consider an application by a person who already holds a medical cannabis establishment license for no more than one license for a cannabis establishment of the same type if the person must meet all requirements of the NCCR and Title 56 of the NRS.}~~

~~5.030 Submission of application by person who holds medical cannabis establishment registration license for cannabis establishment of same type or different type; submission of application by person in response to request for applications. Prior to requesting applications pursuant to NCCR 5.020, the Board will promulgate regulations on how a person who holds medical cannabis establishment license will submit an application for a cannabis establishment of same type or different type in response to a request by the Board pursuant to NCCR 5.020.}~~

5.037 Request by the board of county commissioners of a county to the Board to issue a medical cannabis establishment license for one medical cannabis cultivation facility and/or one medical cannabis production facility.

3. Along with the request made pursuant to subsection 1, the board of county commissioners may include community impact factors and criteria deemed important to the county which shall be incorporated into the application materials prior to the Board opening the licensing round and accepting applications in accordance with NCCR ~~5.037 (5)~~ 5.038 (1).
4. Should the Board grant the request to issue a medical cannabis license pursuant to this section, the Board shall open a licensing round specific to the county and accept applications as set forth in NCCR ~~5.037 (5)~~ 5.038 (1).

5.038 Submission of application for a cannabis establishment license other than a cannabis consumption lounge license.

~~5.1 Upon a request by the Board for applications to operate a cannabis establishment pursuant to NCCR 5.037, a~~ A person may apply for a cannabis establishment license that has an open application period. An application must be submitted through the Board's designated electronic licensing application system during the time listed on the open application period. No applications will be accepted before or after the open application period. The deadline for application submissions and compliance with the application instructions will be strictly enforced. The Board will grant no grace period for an application once the application period has concluded. The Board will not be held responsible for any technical or other issues that the applicant may experience with the electronic licensing application system during the application period. Failure to submit an application, in a timely manner, for any reason including technical issues, will result in a denial. Questions on the application and/or application submittal process must only be submitted in writing to an email designated explicitly for that purpose in the written application instructions. All such questions emails will be posted publicly on the Board's website and may be combined and/or re-worded for clarity

purposes. Regarding such questions and emails, the Board cannot guarantee a response within any particular time frame and/or prior to the application submittal deadline. No applicant is entitled to rely on any verbal information relayed to them regarding the application submittal process. All official application instructions will be posted on the Board's website at www.ccb.nv.gov. The applicant must also provide a point of contact, as required by NCCR 2.050, and update that information as required.

[6.] 2. The initial application must include the following:

- (a) A one-time, nonrefundable administrative processing fee in an amount designated in NRS 678B.390 for that particular cannabis establishment license type.

(i) Each owner, officer and board member listed in the application, must provide the agent card portal record number showing proof the person has applied for an agent card as a prospective owner, officer, or board member;

(1) Applicants must complete all sections of the application, including a complete set of the person's fingerprints, which must be submitted to the Central Repository for Nevada Records of Criminal History for submission to the Federal Bureau of Investigation for its report and payment.

(2) If any owner, officer, or board member listed in the application has been convicted of an excluded felony offense, per NRS 678B.050, the application will be removed from the process, unless said person has a pending petition, or has had a petition granted, pursuant to ~~[S.B. 277, Sec. 4.5, 2023 Leg., 82nd Sess. (Nv. 2023)]~~ [NRS 678B.633.](#)

[7.] 3. At the close of the initial application, the Board and Board agents will conduct a review of the applications and rank each application based on a rubric developed and approved by the Board based on the criteria of merit as required in NRS 678B.240 and set forth in NCCR 5.039. The Board shall give additional weight and consideration to an applicant's response to NRS 678B.240(f) and NCCR 5.039(1)(e). If one applicant ranks first with the highest score, that applicant will undergo a suitability investigation. If the Board approves that applicant's suitability, that applicant shall be issued the cannabis establishment license for which they have applied. If the Board does not approve this applicant's suitability, the applicant shall be denied a cannabis establishment license and the Board shall evaluate the suitability of the next highest scoring applicant. This process shall be repeated until a cannabis license is issued.

[8.] 4. In the event of a tie score, the applicants with the highest rank shall be entered into a random number generator. If an applicant is selected in the random number generator, that applicant will proceed to suitability investigation and issued a cannabis establishment license on approval by the Board. If that applicant is not deemed suitable, another applicant shall be selected for suitability evaluation via the random number generator when two or more applicants have tied for the highest score. Otherwise, the next highest scoring applicant shall undergo a suitability investigation.

[9.] 5. Pursuant to ~~[S.B. 277, Sec 3, 2023 Leg., 82nd Sess. (Nv. 2023)]~~ [NRS 678B.215](#), if the Board issues a license pursuant to this regulation after January 1, 2024, said license shall be issued as an adult-use cannabis establishment license, unless the license is issued in a covered jurisdiction. (Adopted: 2/2024)

5.039 Criteria and weighting of merit for evaluation of license applications for a ~~medical~~ cannabis establishment license other than a cannabis consumption lounge license.

1. In determining whether to issue a ~~medical~~-cannabis establishment license pursuant to NCCR 5.038~~7~~, the Board shall consider the following criteria of merit and score each application accordingly:

(a) Whether the applicant controls liquid assets in an amount determined by the Board to be sufficient to cover the initial expenses of opening the proposed ~~medical~~ cannabis establishment and complying with the provisions of this title. Select one below:

- 0 Points- Meets minimum requirement of ~~[\$200,000]~~ **\$250,000** or minimum established by the Board.
- 1 Point- Meets twice the minimum requirement of ~~[\$200,000]~~ **\$250,000** or minimum established by the Board.
- 2 Points- Meets three times or more of minimum requirement of ~~[\$200,000]~~ **\$250,000** or minimum established by the Board.

(b) The previous experience of the persons who are proposed to be owners, officers or board members of the proposed ~~medical~~ cannabis establishment at operating other businesses or nonprofit organizations. Select one below:

- 0 Points- No previous operating experience within the last 10 years.
- 1 Point- two or more persons within the ownership structure have responsibility and direct experience managing a company's operations or finances within the last 10 years.
- 2 Points- four or more persons within the ownership structure have responsibility and direct experience managing a company's operations or finances.

(c) The educational and life experience of the persons who are proposed to be owners, officers or board members of the proposed ~~medical~~ cannabis establishment. Select one of the first 3 below plus the Bonus, if appropriate:

- 0 Points- No proposed owners have undergraduate or graduate degrees and less than 5 years work experience.
- 1 Point- two or more persons in the ownership structure have undergraduate degrees (inclusive of a Bachelor's or Associate's degree or their equivalent) and/or 5 years of work experience.
- 2 Points- two or more persons have undergraduate degrees plus at least 1 person has a post graduate degree or 10 years work experience.

(d) Any demonstrated knowledge or expertise on the part of the persons who are proposed to be owners, officers or board members of the proposed ~~medical~~ cannabis establishment with respect to the compassionate use of cannabis to treat medical conditions:

- 0 Points- No demonstrated knowledge.

- 1 Point- Demonstrated knowledge and/or experience.

(e) The likely impact of the proposed medical cannabis establishment on the community in which it is proposed to be located. ~~If the Board of County Commissioners issues a letter of approval for the applicant, the applicant shall be awarded 5 points.~~

o 0 Points- No demonstrated impact of the proposed medical cannabis establishment on the community in which it is proposed to be located.

o 1 Point- Demonstrated impact of the proposed medical cannabis establishment on the community in which it is proposed to be located.

(f) The adequacy of the size of the proposed ~~medical~~ cannabis establishment to serve the needs of persons who are authorized to engage in the medical use of cannabis. [This criteria is for cultivation and production only.](#) Select one below:

- 0 Points- The applicant estimates that it will cultivate less than 10 cannabis plants and/or process less than 10 pounds of cannabis per year.
- 1 Point- The applicant estimates that it will cultivate 10 to 50 cannabis plants and/or process 10 to 50 pounds of cannabis per year.
- 2 Points- The applicant estimates that it will cultivate 51 to 100 cannabis plants and/or process 51 to 100 pounds of cannabis per year.
- 3 Points- The applicant estimates that it will cultivate more than 100 cannabis plants and/or process more than 100 pounds of cannabis per year.

[\(g\) The adequacy of the size of the proposed cannabis establishment to serve the needs of persons who are authorized to engage in the medical use of cannabis. This criteria is for a cannabis sales facility only. Select one below:](#)

- [o 0 Points- No demonstrated plan to serve the needs of medical patients.](#)
- [o 1 Points- Demonstrated plan to serve the needs of medical patients.](#)

~~(f)~~ (h) A diversity plan that comports with NCCR 5.045(2)(a)(10): Select all that apply:

- 0 Points- No diversity plan.
- 5 Points – A diversity plan that fully complies with all requirements of NCCR 5.045(2)(a)(1)

~~(f)~~ (i) Whether the applicant or the persons who are proposed to be owners, officers or board members of the proposed ~~medical~~ cannabis establishment or has had an ownership interest of 5% or more or board or officer position in a cannabis establishment that has admitted to a violation or been adjudicated to have violated a Category I Violation in NCCR 4.035, ~~or a~~ Category II Violation in NCCR 4.040 [or Category III Violation in NCCR 4.050.](#)

- 0 Points- No infraction history
- [1 point \(negative\) – two or more Category III Violations \(only applicable for violations that occurred after XX/XX/XXXX amendment.\)](#)
- ~~1~~~~1~~ [2 points](#) (negative) – One to Two Category II Violations.
- ~~1~~~~2~~ [3 points](#) (negative) – Three or more Category II Violations.
- ~~1~~~~2~~ [4 points](#) (negative) – One or ~~two~~ [more](#) Category I Violations.

~~1~~~~1~~ [3 points \(negative\) – Three or more Category I Violations. \(Adopted: 2/2024\)](#)

~~(f)~~ (j) [Whether the owners, officers or board members of the proposed adult-use cannabis establishment have direct experience with the operation of a cannabis establishment in this State and have demonstrated a record of operating such an establishment in compliance with the laws and regulations of this State for an adequate period of time to demonstrate success.](#)

- [0 Points- no previous direct experience with the operation of a cannabis establishment.](#)
- [1 Point- have direct experience with the operation of a cannabis establishment in another state.](#)
- [2 Points- have direct experience with the operation of a cannabis establishment in this State.](#)

~~(f)~~ (k) [The experience of key personnel that the applicant intends to employ in operating the type of adult-use cannabis establishment for which the applicant seeks a license](#)

- [0 Points- no organizational chart and position descriptions that demonstrate needed positions.](#)
- [1 Point- an organizational chart and position descriptions demonstrate needed positions.](#)

(1) For applications submitted pursuant to NRS 678B.220 (3), The likely impact of the proposed medical cannabis establishment on the community in which it is proposed to be located. If the Board of County Commissioners issues a letter of approval for the applicant, the applicant shall be awarded 5 points.

5.039.5 Cannabis establishment prospective and conditional licenses. There is no guarantee that an applicant who meets the minimum scoring guidelines and is selected by the random number selector for a prospective license will also receive a conditional license. To receive a conditional license, an applicant must be found suitable by the Board only after a suitability investigation is completed by Board Agents.

1. In the event the number of licenses for a cannabis establishment type are limited, and if the application meets the minimum scoring guidelines to qualify, the application will be entered into a random number selector to determine which applicants will be selected. If selected through the random number selector, the application will be eligible for a prospective license for a cannabis establishment. If there is no limit on the number of licenses to be awarded in any particular licensing period, a random number selector will not be used. However, the applicant must meet the minimum scoring guidelines before they can proceed to a suitability investigation by the Board Agents and suitability review by the Board to receive a conditional license.

2. If the applicant has met the minimum scoring guidelines on the application and was selected for a prospective license for a cannabis establishment, the applicant must fully cooperate with Board Agents to conduct a suitability investigation.

(a) An applicant who receives a letter informing them that they received a prospective license and that they will be proceeding to a suitability investigation by Board Agents must upload the following documents within 120-days of receipt of such letter. There will be no extensions granted to the 120-day deadline with the exception of the funding requirement pursuant to subsection (2) below:

(1) Evidence that the applicant controls \$250,000.00 in liquid assets;

(2) Operating procedures consistent with the NCCRs to ensure the use of adequate security measures;

(3) Operating procedures consistent with the NCCRs for the use of an inventory control system;

(4) Operating procedures consistent with the NCCRs for handling such cannabis or adult-use cannabis products;

(5) Whether the owners, officers or board members of the proposed cannabis establishment have direct experience with the operation of a cannabis establishment in Nevada and whether they have demonstrated a record of operating such an establishment in compliance with Nevada's laws and regulations for an adequate period of time to demonstrate success;

(6) Whether the owners, officers or board members of the proposed cannabis establishment have direct experience with the operation of a cannabis establishment in a state, jurisdiction or country other than Nevada and whether they have demonstrated a record of operating such an establishment in compliance with the laws and regulations of that state, jurisdiction or country.

(7) The educational and life experience of the persons who are proposed to be owners, officers or board members of the proposed cannabis establishment;

(8) The experience of key personnel that the applicant intends to employ in operating the cannabis establishment for which the applicant seeks a license and a short description of the role in which each personnel will serve for the organization and their responsibilities;

(9) A diversity plan which must be in the form of a detailed written plan that includes objectives, timetables, and evaluation metrics and describes the steps an applicant will take to ensure that the cannabis establishment will promote the meaningful inclusion of diverse groups. The Board will determine whether the stated goals outlined in each Diversity Plan are reasonable and represent a good faith effort to assure that the applicant, who has met the minimum scoring guidelines on the application, accords all persons an equal opportunity in contracting and employment. As used in NRS 678B, diversity refers to minorities, women, and the inclusion of other persons of backgrounds which are disproportionately underrepresented. However, the inclusion of other underrepresented groups, including, but not limited to, veterans, persons with disabilities, and LGBTQ+, is encouraged.

(1) The Diversity Plan, referenced in subsection (10) above, must include the following information:

- (i) The demographic information of each owner, officer, board member, employee, and independent contractor as currently known by the applicant;*
- (ii) Strategies for obtaining a diverse group of owners, officers, board members, employees, including executive positions, management, and independent contractors;*
- (iii) Employee hiring and retention diversity goals adopted by the applicant;*
- (iv) A plan for diversity related outreach or events the applicant will conduct to support its diversity goals in ownership, investment, management, employment, and contracting;*
- (v) Any materials from the applicant on its mentoring, training, or professional development programs for diverse groups;*
- (vi) Proposed timelines and benchmarks for achieving the diversity goals outlined in the Diversity Plan, or in the alternative, a narrative describing the applicant's ability to record and report on the components of the Diversity Plan;*
- (vii) Any other information that demonstrates the applicant's commitment to diversity in ownership, investment, management, employment, and contracting; and*
- (viii) Any other information or documentation required by the Board.*

(10) Last two fiscal year financial statements (or a statement explaining why the financial statements are not available), including an income statement, balance sheet and earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, and amortization (EBITDA);

(11) Resumes or curriculum vitae for all owners, officers, and board members;

(12) Two-year business plan and first-year operating budget for the cannabis establishment;

(13) History of the company; and

(14) If a publicly-traded company, the most recent Non-Objecting Beneficial Owner (NOBO) list.

(b) The documents listed under subsection (a) of subsection 2 are the minimum documents applicants, who have met the minimum scoring guidelines on the applications, are required to upload to the designated electronic licensing application system. If there are no responsive documents to one of the minimum required documents, the applicant must submit an explanation of why they omitted the document. The applicant must turn over any other documents requested by the Board. The applicant must also facilitate in a timely matter any interview of an owner, officer, or board member requested by the Board or Board Agents. If the Board or Board Agents contact the applicant for any reason, the applicant must respond immediately. If an immediate response is not possible, the applicant must respond, no later than 2 business days after contact by the Board or Board Agents. If the applicant fails to respond to any Board or Board Agent communication in a timely manner, that fact may be used to deny the applicant from receiving a prospective, conditional or final license.

(c) When Board Agents complete a suitability investigation, a presentation shall be scheduled at an open and public meeting in front of the Board. The applicant and any requested owner, officer, or board member must be in attendance and prepared to give an affirmative presentation to the Board regarding its application for a license and final suitability determination. The applicant must be prepared to answer any and all questions posed by the Board during the open and public meeting.

(d) The Board will determine on a case-by-case basis the relative weight to give, if any, to any criterion of merit considered and established by the Board.

(e) Once an applicant's conditional license has been issued, the applicant's Diversity Plan will no longer be confidential.

Proposed Changes to NCCR Regulation 6

PRODUCTION and DISTRIBUTION of CANNABIS

New~~Deleted~~CCB proposed changes after 12.04.25 workshop~~CCB proposed deletion~~ after 12.04.25 workshopCCB proposed retention after 12.04.25 workshop

6.035 Confidentiality of name and other personal information of natural persons who facilitate or deliver services pursuant to ~~[Title]~~ title 56 of NRS and the regulations adopted pursuant thereto; exceptions.

1. Except the names of owners, officers, board members, and receivers of licensees, which are public as provided in subsection 3(b)&(c) of NRS 678A.470, [as otherwise provided in this section and NRS 239.011] pursuant to subsection 6 of NRS 678B.650, [the Board and any designee of the Board shall] to maintain accountability, the confidentiality of and [shall not disclose] protect the name and ~~[or]~~ any other [identifying] personal information of a natural person who receives, facilitates or delivers services pursuant to ~~[Title]~~ title 56 of NRS or the NCCR, ~~[Except as otherwise provided in NRS 239.0115]~~ the Board may disclose the name and any other [identifying] personal information of [any] such a natural person ~~[who facilitates or delivers services pursuant to Title 56 of NRS or NCCR are confidential]~~.
2. Notwithstanding the provisions of subsection 1, the Board or its designee may release the name and other identifying information of a person who facilitates or delivers services pursuant to Title 56 of NRS or NCCR to governmental agencies pursuant to subsection 4 of NRS 678A.470 as follows:
 - (a) ~~[Authorized employees of the Board or its designee as necessary to perform official duties of the Board; and]~~
 - (b) ~~Authorized]~~ To authorized employees of federal, state ~~[and/]~~ or local law enforcement agencies ~~[only as necessary to]~~:
 - (1) To verify that ~~[a]~~ the natural person is lawfully receiving, facilitating or delivering services pursuant to ~~[Title]~~ title 56 of NRS or NCCR. ~~[Nothing in this regulation will preclude the Board from disclosing the name and contact information of any person who facilitates or delivers services when providing a list of witnesses pursuant to a disciplinary complaint.]: or~~
 - (2) During a joint investigation for the enforcement of title 56 of NRS, including without limitation, the prevention of unlicensed cannabis sales, if the release of such information is necessary to carry out the investigation.

(b) To authorized agents of a governmental entity:

~~[the]~~ (1) Upon a lawful order or subpoena of a court of competent jurisdiction ~~[authorized agents of any agency of the United States Government, any state or any political subdivision of a state, or the government of any foreign country]~~ directing the release of such information to that governmental entity, except that the governmental entity is not subject to the motion and notice requirements set forth in subsection 5 of NRS 678A.470; or

(2) Upon an administrative subpoena or other compulsory administrative process issued by that governmental entity acting within its lawful authority;

(3) Pursuant to a memorandum of understanding, intergovernmental agreement, or other contract with the Board entered into for the administration of Title 56 of NRS, and only to the extent necessary to carry out the duties and responsibilities established in that agreement or contract.

~~[3]~~2. Nothing in this section ~~[prohibits]~~:

- (a) Prohibits the Board from providing a local ~~government~~ governmental jurisdiction with a copy of all information and documentation provided as part of an application to operate a cannabis establishment, which may include personal information as defined under subsection 8 of NRS 678A.670, upon the request of the local ~~government~~ governmental jurisdiction and with the prior consent of the applicant
- (b) Prohibits the Board from disclosing the name or other personal information of a natural person described in this section, as necessary in the administration of title 56 of NRS or the NCCR, such as to undertake a Board audit, inspection, investigation, or disciplinary action.
- (c) Requires the Board to redact the name of a natural person described in this section when disclosing an otherwise public record, so long as including that name does not reveal information that is not already available to the public or not otherwise known in the context of the record.

6.072 Training and instruction required before agent may begin work or service as a volunteer.

1. A cannabis establishment shall ensure that training is provided to a cannabis establishment agent before that person begins ~~[to work]~~ independently perform any duties, ~~[or]~~ volunteer ~~[ing]~~ or provide ~~[e]ing~~ labor as a cannabis establishment agent at the cannabis establishment. No cannabis establishment agent shall perform any duties independently or without the supervision of a designated trainer, who has been authorized and deemed qualified by the cannabis establishment, until the agent has been released from training, as documented by a training attestation. Such training must include, without limitation:

- (a) The proper use of security measures and controls that have been adopted by the cannabis establishment for the prevention of diversion, theft or loss of cannabis;
- (b) Procedures and instructions for responding to an emergency; ~~[and]~~
- (c) State and federal statutes and regulations related to the use of cannabis;
- (d) Use of the seed-to-sale tracking system designated by the Board, in accordance with the Board's training requirements; and
- (e) Procedures for the proper handling of cannabis plants, usable cannabis, concentrated cannabis and cannabis products.

2. In addition to the training set forth in subsection 1, a cannabis sales facility shall ensure that instruction is provided to a cannabis establishment agent (including delivery drivers) before that person begins to work independently or volunteer at or provide labor as a cannabis establishment agent to the cannabis sales facility. Such instruction must include, without limitation:

- (a) The different strains of cannabis;
- (b) The different methods of using cannabis and cannabis products;
- (c) Learning to recognize signs of cannabis abuse, impairment or instability in the use of cannabis by a consumer;
- (d) Clinical effects of cannabis on the human body and how THC affects the consumer;
- (e) Required warnings and literature which must be supplied to the consumer;
- (f) Methods of refusing entry or sales to prohibited persons, including, without limitation:
 - (1) Verifying and authenticating identification and using age verification devices;
 - (2) Education on the effects of cannabis on persons under 21 years of age; and
 - (3) Recognition of false or altered identification.

- (g) Understanding the role of law enforcement in confirming compliance with laws and regulations relating to cannabis;
- (h) Applicable state and local laws and regulations regarding cannabis;
- (i) Preventing unlawful consumption of cannabis, including, without limitation, Information regarding laws which prohibit open or public consumption of cannabis;
- (j) Preventing the use of cannabis by persons under the age of 21 years, including, without limitation, laws which prohibit such use and the penalties for the violation of such laws;
- (k) How to prevent and address disturbances; and
- (l) The responsibility of the cannabis establishment agent to put into effect strategies adopted by the cannabis establishment to prevent the diversion of cannabis.

3. In addition to the training set forth in subsection 1, a cannabis independent testing laboratory shall ensure that instruction is provided to a cannabis establishment agent before that person begins to work or volunteer at or provide labor as a cannabis establishment agent to the cannabis independent testing laboratory. Such instruction must include, without limitation:

- (a) The good laboratory practices adopted by the cannabis independent testing laboratory; and
- (b) The standard operating procedures and the quality control and quality assurance programs of the cannabis independent testing laboratory.

4. In addition to the training set forth in subsection 1, a cannabis cultivation facility shall ensure that instruction is provided to a cannabis establishment agent before that person begins to work independently or volunteer at or provide labor as a cannabis establishment agent to the cannabis cultivation facility. Such instruction must include, without limitation:

- (a) The methods of cultivation used by the cannabis cultivation facility;
- (b) The methods of fertilization used by the cannabis cultivation facility;
- (c) Methods for recognizing the signs of insect infestation, pathogens and disease in cannabis plants, and the procedures for eradication and the safe disposal of plants so affected;
- (d) The nutritional requirements of cannabis plants at various growth stages, including, without limitation, proper mixing and dispersal of fertilizer, flushing procedures and procedures for postharvest trimming, drying and curing; and
- (e) The safe handling of equipment, including, without limitation, high-intensity discharge lamps, electrical ballasts, pumps, fans, cutting implements and other equipment for cultivation.

5. In addition to the training set forth in subsection 1, a cannabis production facility shall ensure that instruction is provided to a cannabis establishment agent before that person begins to work independently or volunteer at or provide labor as a cannabis establishment agent to the cannabis production facility. Such instruction must include, without limitation:

- (a) Understanding the difference between concentrated cannabis, topical products and cannabis products, as applicable to the operations of the cannabis production facility;
- (b) The procedures used by the cannabis production facility to create concentrated cannabis and cannabis products; and
- (c) The proper procedures for handling concentrated cannabis and cannabis products, including, without limitation, the procedures used to prepare, produce, package and store such products as required by the provisions of the NCCR and chapters 678D and 678C of NRS.

6. In addition to the training set forth in subsection 1, a cannabis distributor shall ensure that instruction is provided to a cannabis establishment agent before that person begins to work independently or volunteer at or provide labor as a cannabis establishment agent to the cannabis distributor. Such instruction must include, without limitation:

- (a) ~~Procedures for the proper handling of cannabis plants, usable cannabis, concentrated cannabis and cannabis products;~~

~~(b)~~ Procedures for the proper transportation and storage of cannabis plants, usable cannabis, concentrated cannabis and cannabis products; and

~~(c)~~*(b)* Information regarding the type of driver's license which must be maintained for the loads expected to be transported.

7. In addition to the training set forth in subsection 1, cannabis consumption lounges shall ensure that instruction is provided to a cannabis establishment agent before that person begins to work *independently* or volunteers or provides labor as a cannabis establishment agent at the cannabis consumption lounge. Such instruction must include, without limitation:

6.075 Development, documentation and implementation of certain policies and procedures; maintenance and availability. A cannabis establishment shall:

1. Develop, document and implement policies and procedures regarding:

(e) Facility-specific training, including, without limitation:

- (1) on the cannabis establishment's operations, policies, and procedures;*
- (2) on the use of the state-designated seed-to-sale inventory tracking system, including the entry, reconciliation, and reporting of cannabis and cannabis product data;*
- (3) on the proper management and handling of cannabis and cannabis products, including storage, packaging, labeling, transfer, and waste procedures;*
- (4) on procedures to ensure the security of cannabis and cannabis products, including restricted access, surveillance, and incident reporting; and*
- (5) Any additional health, safety, or compliance training deemed necessary by the Board.*

6.080 Inventory control system; authorized sources for acquisition of cannabis and cannabis products; duties of establishment if loss incurred; maintenance and availability of documentation.

4. A cannabis cultivation facility may acquire seeds for the cultivation of cannabis from any person if the acquisition of the seeds does not violate ~~[the provisions of Title 56 of NRS]~~ *State and Federal laws*. A cannabis cultivation facility may also acquire cannabis or cannabis products from a consumer if the acquisition does not violate the provisions of Title 56 of NRS.

7. Each cannabis establishment, *except a cannabis independent testing laboratory*, shall establish and implement an inventory control system that documents, *as applicable to the types of cannabis or cannabis products maintained in inventory*:

(a) Each day's beginning inventory, acquisitions, harvests, sales, disbursements, disposal of unusable cannabis and ending inventory, including, without limitation, the:

- (1) Number of plants and cuttings;
- (2) Weight of flowers, measured in grams;
- (3) Weight of trim, measured in grams;

(4) Quantity of THC, measured in milligrams ~~and~~

(5) Weight of seeds, measured in grams; *and*

(6) Weight of concentrated cannabis, measured in grams.

(d) For each batch of cannabis cultivated:

(1) The batch number, lot number and production run number, as applicable.

(2) Whether the batch originated from cannabis seeds or cannabis cuttings.

(3) The strain of the cannabis seeds or cannabis cuttings planted.

(4) The number of cannabis seeds or cannabis cuttings planted.

(5) The date on which the cannabis seeds or cuttings were planted.

(6) A list of all chemical additives used in the cultivation, including, without limitation, nonorganic pesticides, herbicides and fertilizers.

(7) The number of cannabis plants grown to maturity.

(8) Harvest information, including, without limitation:

(I) The date of harvest

(II) The harvest batch number;

~~(III)~~ ***(III)*** The final yield weight of processed usable cannabis, in grams; and

(IV) The name and the number of the cannabis establishment agent registration card of the cannabis establishment agent responsible for the harvest.

8. Each cannabis establishment shall:

(a) Establish and maintain a seed-to-sale tracking system which adequately documents the flow of cannabis materials ~~through the manufacturing process~~ from raw input through processing, packaging, and final sale, to ensure complete traceability. The system must be capable of capturing real-time data and maintaining audit trails in compliance with GAAP Inventory Accounting Standards and the COSO Framework Principal 10: Control activities, which requires the implementation of controls through policies and procedures.

(b) Establish procedures which reconcile the raw material used to create the finished product on the basis of each job. Significant variances must be documented, investigated by management personnel and immediately reported to the appropriate Board agent and to the cannabis establishment that ordered the concentrated cannabis or cannabis product.

(c) Provide for quarterly physical inventory counts to be performed by persons independent of the manufacturing process which are reconciled to the perpetual inventory records. Significant variances must be documented, investigated by management personnel and reported to the appropriate Board agent within 24 hours after the completion of the investigation.

9. If a cannabis establishment identifies a reduction in the amount of cannabis in the inventory of the cannabis establishment which is not due to documented causes, the cannabis establishment shall:

(a) Notify the Board of the discrepancy within 24 hours after discovering the reduction;

(b) Conduct an investigation to determine where the loss has occurred;

(c) Take and document corrective action; and

(d) Notify the Board of the results of any investigation conducted by the cannabis establishment within 24 hours after the completion of the investigation.

10. If the reduction in the amount of cannabis in the inventory of the cannabis establishment is due to suspected criminal activity by a cannabis establishment agent, the cannabis establishment shall report the cannabis establishment agent to the Board in writing and to the appropriate law enforcement agencies within 24 hours. The Board may require the cannabis

establishment to provide additional information as it determines necessary to conduct an investigation.

11. A cannabis establishment shall:

- (a) Maintain the documentation required by subsections 7, 8 and 9 at the cannabis establishment for at least 5 years after the date on the document; and
- (b) Provide the documentation required by subsections 7, 8 and 9 to the Board or Board agents for review upon request.

(c) Use Board-approved forms or formats to maintain and provide documentation required under subsections 7 through 9, when the forms are available.

12. All cannabis independent testing laboratories shall establish and implement an inventory control system that accurately records and tracks all cannabis and cannabis product test samples, including acquisitions, testing in progress, samples consumed during testing, samples destroyed, and the resulting beginning and ending inventory for each business day in the seed-to-sale tracking system.

(a) Independent testing laboratories shall conduct physical inventory counts quarterly in accordance with the requirements set forth in subsection 8.

6.085 Required security measures, equipment and personnel; location of outdoor cultivation facility must allow for response by local law enforcement.

1. To prevent unauthorized access to cannabis at a cannabis establishment, the cannabis establishment must develop a written standard operating procedure for security and have:

(a) All entrances of the physical building secured in accordance with this section.

(3) Electronic monitoring, including, without limitation, each of the following:

(IV) Video cameras with a recording resolution of at least 720 x 480, or the equivalent, at a rate of at least 15 frames per second which provide continuous coverage of all limited access areas not described in sub subparagraph (III) and any activity occurring in or adjacent to the establishment, which record 24 hours per day, which are capable of being accessed remotely by a law enforcement agency, the Board, and Board agents in real time upon request, which may record motion only and which, for a cannabis cultivation facility which engages in outdoor cultivation, cover the entirety of the cultivation area and the perimeter and exterior area of the cannabis cultivation facility. The information necessary to remotely access the camera footage must be entered into the cannabis establishment's portal within the Board's electronic licensing system;

(IX) Sufficient battery backup for video cameras and recording equipment to support at least [5] 60 minutes of recording in the event of a power outage;

2. Each video camera used pursuant to subparagraph (3) of paragraph (c) of subsection 1 must:

- (a) Include a date and time generator which [possesses the capability to display] displays the date and time of recorded events on the recording in a manner that does not significantly obstruct the recorded view; and
- (b) Be installed in a manner that will prevent the video camera from being readily obstructed, tampered with or disabled. This includes accounting for the changing height and density of plants during growth cycles.

6.095 Requirements for building used as cannabis establishment or by dual licensee; use of commercial weighing and measuring equipment.

1. A building used as a cannabis establishment or by a dual licensee must have:
 - (a) At least one toilet facility, each of which must contain:
 - (1) A flushable toilet;
 - (2) Mounted toilet tissue;
 - (3) A fully stocked hand sink
 - (i) All sinks within the restroom must be fully stocked [with running water which is capable of delivering hot water at a minimum temperature of 100°F (37.8°C);
 - (4) Soap contained in a dispenser;
 - (5) Disposable, single-use paper towels in a mounted dispenser; and
 - (6) A conveniently located trash can.
 - (b) Except for a cannabis distributor, [at least one] a fully stocked hand-washing sink, which is designated for hand washing only, [not located in a toilet facility] conveniently located in all areas which handwashing may be required and located [away from any area in which edible cannabis products are cooked or otherwise prepared to] in a manner that prevents splash contamination. Additional hand-washing sinks may be required to facilitate hand washing as required.
 - (c) Designated storage areas for concentrated cannabis and cannabis products or materials used in direct contact with such items separate from storage areas for toxic or flammable materials.
 - (d) At least one mop sink or dump sink to dispose of liquid waste.
 - (e) If preparation or packaging of concentrated cannabis or cannabis products is done in the building, a designated area for the preparation or packaging that:
 - (1) Includes workspace that can be sanitized;
 - (2) Is only used for the preparation or packaging of concentrated cannabis or cannabis products; and
 - (3) Has a fully stocked hand-washing sink conveniently located and designated for hand washing only.
2. A fully stocked hand-washing sink includes:
 - (a) Running water which is capable of delivering hot water at a minimum temperature of 100°F (37.8°C);
 - (b) Soap contained in a dispenser;
 - (c) Disposable, single-use paper towels in a mounted dispenser; and
 - (d) A conveniently located trash can.
3. For any commercial weighing and measuring equipment used at a cannabis establishment, the cannabis establishment must:
 - (a) Ensure that the commercial device is licensed pursuant to chapter 581 of NRS;
 - (b) Maintain documentation of the license of the commercial device; and
 - (c) Provide a copy of the license of the commercial device to the Board or Board Agents for review upon request.

6.100 Quality assurance testing required before sale or transfer of products. A cannabis establishment shall not sell, combine lots, or transfer a lot of usable cannabis, concentrated cannabis or cannabis products until all required quality assurance testing has been completed.

6.120 Restrictions on advertising; required posting of signs in cannabis sales facility.

3. A sign containing only a business name or company logo is not required to contain the words “Keep out of reach of children” or “For use only by adults 21 years of age and older.” ~~A cannabis establishment must maintain advertisement documentation for at least five years, if advertising to an audience and determining the percentage of persons under 21 years of age and older. The cannabis establishment must be able to demonstrate the manner in which it determined the reasonably expected age of the audience for that advertisement.]~~
4. A cannabis establishment shall not advertise or offer any cannabis or cannabis product as “free” or “donated” without a purchase in the same transaction.

Proposed Changes to NCCR Regulation 7

CANNABIS SALES FACILITY

New~~Deleted~~

CCB proposed changes after 12.04.25 workshop

~~CCCB proposed deletion~~ after 12.04.25 workshop

CCB proposed retention after 12.04.25 workshop

7.015 Duties of cannabis establishment agent before sale to consumer. Before a cannabis establishment agent sells cannabis or cannabis products to a consumer, the cannabis establishment agent shall:

1. Manually ~~Verify~~ verify the age of the consumer by checking a valid government-issued identification card containing a photograph of the consumer at point of entry and ~~by~~ point of sale. Additionally, must use ~~fusing~~ an identification scanner approved by the appropriate Board Agent to determine the validity of any government-issued identification card either at point of entry or point of sale;
2. Offer any appropriate consumer education or support materials; and
3. Enter the following information into the inventory control system:
 - (a) The amount of cannabis or cannabis product sold;
 - (b) The date and time at which the cannabis or cannabis product was sold;
 - (c) The number of the cannabis establishment agent registration card of the cannabis establishment agent; and
 - (d) The number of the license for the cannabis establishment.

7.030 Products required to be offered for sale; restrictions on sale of other products; restrictions on advertising.

1. A cannabis sales facility shall only offer for sale cannabis, cannabis products, cannabis paraphernalia, cannabis-related accessories, branded merchandise, products containing CBD and products containing industrial hemp which are related to cannabis.
2. Each cannabis sales facility shall offer for sale containers for the storage of cannabis and cannabis products which lock and are designed to prohibit children from unlocking and opening the container.
3. A cannabis sales facility shall not sell any food, beverage or personal care item that does not contain cannabis.
4. A cannabis sales facility shall not sell any product that contains nicotine.
5. A cannabis sales facility shall not sell any product that contains alcohol if the product would require the cannabis sales facility to hold a license issued pursuant to chapter 369 of NRS.
6. A cannabis sales facility shall not sell cannabis or cannabis products to a consumer through the use of, or accept a sale of cannabis or cannabis products from, a third party, intermediary business, broker or any other business that does not hold a license for a cannabis sales facility in this State.
7. A cannabis sales facility shall not contract with a third party or intermediary business to advertise delivery to consumers. This section applies to advertising only and not delivery services.
8. A cannabis sales facility shall not recommend products to women that are pregnant or breastfeeding.

7.060 Curbside pickup operations at cannabis sales facilities.

1. Cannabis sales facilities may only offer curbside pickup after submitting and receiving approval from the appropriate CCB agent.

~~[2. All orders MUST be placed in advance. Any form of in person or onsite ordering will not be permitted.]~~ Consumer/patients shall be instructed to not exit their vehicle.

~~[3.]~~ 2. Each cannabis sales facility offering curbside pickup shall develop, and submit to the Board for approval, Standard Operating Procedures (SOP) for curbside pickup that address the following:

- (a) Security Plan
- (b) Curbside Pickup Plan
- (c) Curbside Pickup Designation
- (d) Transaction(s) Protection Measures

Proposed Changes to NCCR Regulation 9

PRODUCTION OF CANNABIS PRODUCTS

New

~~Deleted~~

CCB proposed changes after 12.04.25 workshop

~~CCB proposed deletion~~ after 12.04.25 workshop

CCB proposed retention after 12.04.25 workshop

9.025 Requirements and restrictions on use of non-cannabis ingredients.

1. Each cannabis establishment shall ensure that it obtains non-cannabis ingredients, including hemp and CBD, for cannabis products from sources that comply with the requirements of federal and state law and regulations and are approved by the Board, including, without limitation, commercial and retail businesses.
2. A cannabis establishment shall not use or prepare non-cannabis ingredients prepared or stored in a private home.
3. A cannabis production facility must submit all new menu items and their ingredients to the appropriate Board Agent for approval on a form prescribed by the Board prior to production and sale of new products. A cannabis establishment may not produce nasal spray, inhalers, eye drops, or medical devices.
4. A cannabis production facility must ensure all flavorings and terpenes obtained from external sources are accompanied by a signed attestation prescribed by the Board certifying that the flavorings and terpenes comply with State law and regulations.
- ~~(4)~~ (5.) A cannabis establishment preparing menu items that require a HACCP plan as determined by the appropriate Board Agent must be approved by a processing authority prior to submission. Special processes requiring a HACCP plan include, but are not limited to, canning, reduced oxygen packaging, and other processes as determined by the appropriate Board Agent.

Proposed Changes to NCCR Regulation 10

MINIMUM GOOD MANUFACTURING PRACTICES for CULTIVATION and
PREPARATION of CANNABIS PRODUCTS for ADMINISTRATION to HUMANSNew~~Deleted~~CCB proposed changes after 12.04.25 workshop~~CCB proposed deletion~~ after 12.04.25 workshopCCB proposed retention after 12.04.25 workshop

10.080 Cannabis establishment: Storage, management and disposal of waste.

4. A cannabis establishment shall provide notice to the Board using the seed-to-sale tracking system before rendering unusable and disposing of cannabis or cannabis products.

(a) If the total amount to be disposed exceeds 23,000 grams, 4,000 individual units, or 50 pounds in aggregate weight of cannabis, cannabis products, or biomass, the cannabis establishment must submit a separate disposal request through the Board's electronic licensing system (Accela) for review and approval before proceeding.

(b) Routine cultivation waste such as fanleaves, stems, root balls, and other plant material not associated with tracked packages or tagged plants may be destroyed and logged in the seed-to-sale system without a separate Accela request, provided the waste is rendered unusable and recorded in compliance with NCCR.

(c) All destruction and disposal activities must be conducted under surveillance cameras and documented with time-stamped photographic evidence, method of destruction, and the name and agent ID of the employee(s) responsible.

(d) Root balls must be fully separated from the stalks of the plant after harvest and disposed of following your local waste management guidelines. The CCB does not require root ball destruction to be tracked in the state seed-to-sale inventory tracking system.

Proposed Changes to NCCR Regulation 12

PACKAGING and LABELING of CANNABIS PRODUCTS

New

~~Deleted~~

CCB proposed changes after 12.04.25 workshop

~~CCB proposed deletion~~ after 12.04.25 workshop

CCB proposed retention after 12.04.25 workshop

12.010 Requirements for single packages.

1. A single package for an adult-use cannabis product sold as a pill must not contain more than 100 milligrams of THC per capsule or more than ~~800~~ 1000 milligrams of THC per package.
2. For cannabis or cannabis products that are intended to be sold to a consumer, the text used on all labeling must be printed in at least 8-point font and may not be in italics.

12.015 Requirements for packaging cannabis, cannabis products and edible cannabis products.

1. Except as otherwise provided in NCCR 12.040 and NCCR 12.045, any cannabis or cannabis product sold by a cannabis establishment must:
 - (a) Be clearly and unambiguously packaged as cannabis with the words “THIS PRODUCT CONTAINS CANNABIS” and the warning “KEEP OUT OF REACH OF CHILDREN” in bold type that clearly identifies that the product contains cannabis .
 - (b) Be packaged in a manner which is not modeled after a brand of products primarily consumed by or marketed to children .
 - (c) Be presented in packaging which does not contain an anthropomorphic image or an image of a cartoon character, mascot, action figure, balloon or toy, except that , for a cannabis product, such an item may appear in the logo of the cannabis production facility which produced the product.

12.070 Advertising of cannabis

1. Except as otherwise provided in subsection 2, a cannabis establishment shall ensure that all advertising by the cannabis establishment contains:
 - (a) In a visible and legible manner, the following warnings:
 - (1) “Keep out of reach of children”; and
 - (2) “For use only by adults 21 years of age and older”; and
 - (b) The following information in a visible and legible manner:
 - (1) The name of the cannabis establishment; and
 - (2) The cannabis establishment ID number assigned to the cannabis establishment by the cannabis establishment by the Board or if a cannabis establishment holds more than one license, either the adult-use cannabis establishment ID number or the medical cannabis establishment ID number.
2. The requirements of subsection 1 do not apply to:
 - (a) Signage of the business name, company logos, devices, lights, figures, paintings, drawings, branding or plaques that are used in the design of the cannabis establishment; or
 - (b) Advertisements which are posted inside a licensed cannabis establishment and are not for distribution, including, without limitation, displays or images for the promotion of a brand.

3. Except as otherwise provided in subsection 4, a cannabis establishment shall not engage in advertising that:

- (a) In any way makes cannabis or cannabis products appeal to children, including , without limitation, advertising which uses an *anthropomorphic* image *or an image* of a cartoon character, mascot, action figure, balloon, fruit or toy; or
- (b) Is modeled after a brand of products primarily consumed by or marketed to children.

***/.